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Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate
accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the unaudited annual financial statements and related
financial information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the unaudited annual
financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the municipality as at the end of the financial year and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on
the unaudited annual financial statements and was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The unaudited annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards
Board.

The Unaudited nnual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting pelicies consistently applied and supperted
by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The accounting officer acknowledges that he is uttimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the municipality and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the accounting
officer to meet these responsibiliies, the accounting officer sefs standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of
error or deficit in 2 cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly
defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.
These controls are monitored throughout the municipality and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical
standards in ensuring the municipality’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above
reproach. The focus of risk management in the municipality Is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known
forms of risk across the municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the municipality endeavours to minimise it
by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reaschable, and not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2023 and, in the light of this
review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the municipality has or has access to adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The municipality is wholly dependent on the municipality for continued funding of operations. The annual financial statements
are prepared on the basis that the municipality is a going cancern and that the municipality has neither the intention nor the
need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the municipality.

Although the accounting officer is primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the municipality, he is supported by the
municipality's members of the Audit Commitiee and Executive Mayor.

The unaudited annual financial statements have been prapared on the geing concern basis, in terms of Section 126(1) of the
#MFMA and which | have signed on behalf of GSDM on 31 August 2022 :

Habile CA
Municipal Manager
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2022

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2022 2021
Restated”
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 255,950,957 186,830,217
Inventories 3 1,256,758 1,081,857
Prepayments 4 2,130,182 2,004,439
Receivables from exchange transactions 5 14,946,112 15,715,885
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 6 64,644 64,844
VAT receivable 7 - 7,357 499
274,348,653 213,054,541
Non-Current Assets
Heritage assets 8 159,250 159,250
Intangible assets 9 2,955,014 1,077,554
Investrment property 10 22,300,689 .
Property, plant and equipment 11 274545711 295,974 585
Receivabies from non-exchange transactions 6 806,714 1,103,705
300,767,378 298,315,094
Total Assets 575,116,031 511,369,635
Liabilities
Current Liabillties
Consumer deposits 12 60,750 52,798
Finance lease obligation 13 1,044,391 839,442
Long Service Provision 14 2,127,000 797,000
Payables from exchange transactions 15 116,879,884 98,209,514
Provisions for bonus 16 5,272,537 4,473 248
Payables from non-exchange transactions 17 42,603 12,516,435
Post retirement benefit obligation 18 101.000 96,000
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 19 - 685
VAT payable 20 32,375,144 -
157,903,309 116,985,122
Non-Current Liabilities
Post retirement benefit obligation 18 758,000 783,000
Long Service Provision 14 11,372,000 10,718,000
Finance lease obligation 13 702,026 1,746,417
12,833,026 13,247 417
Total Liabilities 170,736,335 130,232,539
Net Assets 404,379,696 381,137,096
Accumulated surplus 404,379,688 381,137,008
Total Net Assets 404,379,698 381,137,098
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Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2022 2021
Restated”
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Service charges 23 87,948 110,091
Rendering of services 1,163,368 471,050
Other income 22 10,634,845 10,445,405
Interest received - investment 21 11,910,104 10,357,131
Gain on disposals of assets and libilities - 646,593
Total revenue from exchange transactions 23,796,265 22,030,270
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 24 329,025,000 319,799,000
Revenue in-kind 22,300,689 -
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 351,325,689 319,799,000
Total revenue 375,121,954 341,829,270
Expenditure
Employee related costs 26 (189,529,623) (190,014,509)
Remuneration of councillors 31 (13,340,169) (13,595,538)
Depreciation and amortisation 25 (24,094,733) (23,376,441)
Reversal of impairments 28 - {46,528)
Finance costs 27 (1,367,184)  (1,064,258)
Lease 29 (106,800} (217,800}
Bad debts written off - (460,870)
Transfers and Subsidies 32 (46,796,612) (54,779,971)
Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities {319,343) -
Operating costs 30 (76,324,992) (69,615,321)
Total expenditure {351,879,356) (353,171,236)

Surplus {deficit) for the year

23,242,698

{11,341,966)
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Accumulated Total net

Figures in Rand surplus assets
Opening balance as previously reported 391,128,653 381,128,653
Adjustments

Correction of errors 1,350,410 1,350,410
Balance at 01 July 2020 as restated* 392,479,063 392,479,063
Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year (11,341,965} (11,341,965)
Total changes (11,341,965) (11,341,865)
Restated* Balance at 01 July 2021 381,137,100 381,137,100
Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year 23,242,598 23,242 598
Total changes 23,242,598 23,242 598
Balance at 30 June 2022 404,379,698 404,379,698
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Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2022 2021
Restated*
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Sale of goods and services 1,154,731 (13,926,393)
Grants received 329,025,000 319,730,217
Interest Income 11,910,104 10,357,131
Other receipts 11,805,479 10,922,518
353,805,314 327,083,473
Payments
Employee costs (201,239,503) (202,264,209)
Suppliers (30,803,255) (27,212,984)
Finance costs - .
Other cash item (46,796,512) (54,779,972)
(278,839,270) (284,257,165)
Net cash flows from operating activities 35 75,066,044 42,826,308
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,523,180) (13,726,939}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment " 727,066 1,181,250
Purchase of other intangible assets ] (2,066,550} (899,898)
Proceeds from sale of other intangible assets 9 - 167
Net cash flows from investing activities ' (4,862,664) (13,545,420)
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance lease payments (1,072,625) 2,409,190
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 69,120,755 31,690,078
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 186,830,217 155,140,132
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2 255,950,972 186,830,210
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget oh comparable between final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual
Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Service charges 124,800 - 124,800 87,948 {36,852) 43(1)
Rendering of services 490,760 - 490,760 1,163,367 672,607 43(2)
Other income 9,047,030 3,920,030 13,876,060 10,634,845  (3,241,215)  43(3)
Interest received - investment 10,542,280 - 10,542,280 11,910,104 1,367,824 43(4)
Total revenue from exchange 21,104,870 3,929,030 25,033,900 23,796,264 (1,237,636)
transactions
Revenue from non-exchange
fransactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 328,025,000 - 329,025,000 320 025,000 -
Revenue in kind a = 22,300,689 22,300,589 43(5)
Total revenue from non- 329,025,000 - 329,025,000 351,325,689 22,300,689
exchange transactions
Total revenue 350,129,870 3,929,030 354,058,900 375,121,953 21,063,053
Expenditure
Personnel (208,770,242) 5975050 (202,795,192) (189,529,623) 13,265,569 43(11)
Remuneration of councillors (16,794,520) - (16,794,520) (13,340,1698) 3,454,351 43(8)
Depreciation and amortisation (24,561,560) - (24,661,660} (24 004,733) 466,827
Finance costs (670,800) - (670,800)  (1,357,184) (696,384) 43(7)
lease rentals on operating lease (208,000) - {208,000) (106,800) 101,200
Transfers and Subsidies (48,516,025)  (3,169,020) (51,685,048) (45796512) 4,888,533 43(9)
Loss on disposal of assets = - - {319,343) {319,343) 43(8)
General Expenses {79.870,415)  (2,316,030) (82,186,445) (76324,092) 5,861,453 43(10)
Total expenditure (379,391,562) 490,000 (378,901,562) (351,879,356) 27,022,206
Surplus before taxation (29,261,692) 4,419,030 (24,842,662) 23,242,597 48,085,259
Actual Amount on Comparable (29,261,692) 4,419,030 (24,842,662) 23,242,597 48,085,259

Basis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement

Auditor General South Africa

Mpumalanga Business Unit
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Accounting Policies

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2022 2021

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice {(GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance
Management Act (Act 56 of 2003).

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual
financial statements, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Going concern assumption

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the municipality will continue to
operate as a going concem for at least the next 12 months.

1.2 Significantjudements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value-
Ih-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations reguire the use of estimates and assumptions.

The municipality reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Post-retirement benefits and long service awards

The present value of the post-retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis
using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost {income) include the discount rata. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post-retirement obligations.

The municipality determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used
to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the medical aid obligations.
In determining the appropriate discount rate, the municipality considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related pension liability.

Other key assumptions for medical aid cbligations are based on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed
in Note 18.

1.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at their amortised cost.

1.4 Investment property

Investment property is property (land, building and infrastructure) held to eam rentals or for capital:appreciation or both, rather
nEn f? i use in the production or supply of goods or services or for

. administrative purposes, or
. sale in the ordinary course of operations.

10
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Accounting Policies

1.4 Investment property (continued)

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that
are associated with the investment property will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the investment properly
can be measured reliably.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of
acquisition.

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or fo replace a part of, or service a property. If a
replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Fair value

Subsedquent to initlal measurement investment property is measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects market conditions at the reporting date.

A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net surplus or deficit for the period in which it arises.

If the Municipality determines that the fair value of an investment property under construction is not reliably determinable but
expects the fair value of the property to be reliably measurable when construction is complete, it measures that investment
property under construction at cost until either its fair value becomes reliably determinable or construction is completed
(whichever is earier}. If the Municipality determines that the fair value of an investment property (other than an investment
property under construction) is not reliably determinable on a continuing basis, the Municipality measures that investment
property using the cost model (as per the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment). The residual value of the
investment property is then assumed to be zero. The Municipality applies the cost model (as per the accounting policy on
Property, plant and equipment) until disposal of the investment property.

Once the Municipality becomes able to measure reliably the fair value of an investment property under construction that has
previously been measured at cost, it measures that property at its fair value. Once construction of that property is complete, it
is presumed that fair value can be measured reliably. If this is not the case, the property is accounted for using the cost model
in accordance with the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment,

Derecognition

Investment property is derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service
potential expected from the use of the asset .

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

* itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the

municipality; and

»  the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
The cost of an item of property, piant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attrib(itaiie 16'bring the asset to/the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by managesnent. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the co
Donated assets are initially measured at fairvalue on the date of transfer.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

11
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Accounting Policies

1.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straightline basis over their expacted useful lives to their estimated
residual value.

Praperty, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life
Land Straight-line indefinite
Buildings

- Office buildings Straight-line 30
- Laboratories Straight-line 30
- Disaster centres Straight-line 30
Plant and aquipment Straight-line 5
Furniture and fixtures

- Office furniture Straight-line 7
- Elevator system Straight-line 20
- Transformer Straight-line 50
- Solar panels Straight-line 7
Office equipment Straight-line 7
IT Equipment Straight-line 5
Motor vehicles

- Motor vehicles Straight-line 7
- Construction vehicles Straight-line 10
Communication equiment Straight-line 2
l.aboratory equipment Straight-line 7
Park facilities

- Public parking Straight-line 30
- Carports / garages / shelters Straight-line 15
Leased copiers Straight-line 3
Specialised vehicles

- Emergency vehicles Straight-line 12

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately

ltems of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The municipality separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the notes to the
financial statements {see not 30).

The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the
financial statements (see note 11).

1.6 Intangible assets

An asset is identifiable if it either:

. is-separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability-regardidss of
whether the entity intends to do so; or

. arises from binding arrangements (inciuding rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the municipality or from other rights and obligations.

12
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Accounting Policies

1.6 Intangible assets {continued)

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in
the form of a contract.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
*  itis probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the municipality; and
»  the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The municipality assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and
supportable assumptions that represent management's best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the
useful fife of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
at its fair value as at that date.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, thers is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation pericd and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at sach reporting date,

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that
the asset may be impaired. As a resuit the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over
its useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as
intangible assets.

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an intangible asset.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values as follows:

ltem Depreciation method Average useful life
Computer software, cther Straight-line 5

The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the
financial statements (see note 8),

Intangible assets are derecognised:

. on disposal; or

. when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.
1.7 Heritage assets

Assets are resources controlled by an municipality as a result of past events and from which future economic benefits or
service potential are expected to flow to the municipality.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised after deducting accumulated impairment losses.

Class of heritage assets means a grouping of heritage assets of a similar nature or furiction in an municipality’s operations that
is shown as a single item for the purpose of disclosure in the annual financial statements

Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance
and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generation

An impairment loss of a non-cash-generating asset is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset excedds its
recoverable service amount.

13
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Accounting Policies

1.7 Heritage assets {continued)

An inalienable item is an asset that an municipality is required by law or otherwise to retain indefinitely and cannot be disposed
of without consent.

Recoverable amount is the higher of a cash-generating asset’s net selling price and its value In use.
The municipality discloses relevant information refating to heritage assets, in the notes to the financial statements (see note 8).
Recognition

The municipality recognises a heritage asset as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the asset will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Inltial measurement
Heritage assets are measured at cost.

Where a heritage asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is measured at its fair value as at the date of
acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets is carried at its cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

If a heritage asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is credited directly to a revaluation
surplus. However, the increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the
same heritage asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a heritage asset's carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognised in surplus or deficit.
However, the decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation
surplus in respect of that heritage asset.

Impairment

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that it may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable amount or the recoverable service amount of the heritage asset.

Transfers

Transfers from heritage assets are only made when the particular asset no longer meets the definition of a heritage asset.
Transfers to heritage assets are only made when the asset meets the definition of a heritage asset.

Derecognition

The municipality derecognises heritage asset on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service potential are
expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage asset is included in surplus or deficit when the item is
derecognised (unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback).

1.8 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset'et-financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effectiveé
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directlyor
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial logs for the other party by failing to discharge
an obligation.

14
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Accounting Policies

1.8 Financlal instruments (continued)

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial assst or financial liability from an entity's statement of
financial position

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interast income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effactive interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liahility. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life
of a financial instrument {or group of financial instruments), the antity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an amm's length transaction.

A financial asset is:
. cash;
. a residual interest of another entity; or
= & contractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or finangial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
= deliver cash or another financial asset to ancther entity; or
*  exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the avent of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset..

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk}, whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting,all of its liabilities. A
residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:
. equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
. a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as
forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution: or
. a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existini{iifanc)dl-intérést in the net
assets of an entity.
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1.8 Financial instruments {continued)

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability. An incremental cost is ohe that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or
disposed of the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-defivative financial liabilities that have fixed
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

. the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or

. are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market,
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Finangial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:
. derivatives;
. contingent consideration of an acquirer in a transfer of functions between entities not under common control to which
the Standard of GRAP on Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not Under Common Control (GRAF 106) applies
. combined instruments that are designated at fair value;
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1.8 Financial instruments (continued)

instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading If:

- it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term: or

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;

- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabiliies with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at
fair value at initial recognition; and

- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial
instruments at cost.

Innitial recognition

The entity recognises a financial assets or financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Initial measurement of financial assets and liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuse of the financial asset or financial liability.
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value [if subsequently measured at fair
value].
The entity first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the
entity analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each component separately. The
entity accounts for that part of a concessionary loan that is:

- a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements,
where it is the issuer of the loan; or

- non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
(Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the foan.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
- Financial instruments at fair value,

- Financial instruments at amortised cost.

- Financial instruments at cost,

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.
Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not
active, the entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique
is to establish what the transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange
motivated by normal operating considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. If there is a
valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the instrument and that technigue has been
demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market transactions, the entity uses that
technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies as litle as possible on
entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price and is
consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount
payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid.

Reclassiflcation

The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
- combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or

- an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.

Where the entity cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that Hzs been separated from a
host contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting dale, it measures the combined instrument at
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1.8 Financial instruments (continued)
fair value. This requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair value.

If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value.' the
entity reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value is no longer
available becomes the cost.

If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was previously
not available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the entity reclassifies the
instrument from cost to fair value.

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is
recognised in surplus or deficit,

For financiat assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in
surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the
amortisation process.

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

The entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly OR through the
use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impaiment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
directly OR by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial
asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Financial assets measured at cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impaimment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that
is not measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses
are not reversed.

Derecognition
Financial Assets

The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived,
- the entity transfers to another party substantially al! of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or
- the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has
transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has thepractical ability 1o sell the assetin its
entirety to an unrelated third parly, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and withelli needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity :

-derecognise the asset; and

-recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the fransferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those
transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are
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1.8 Financlal Instruments (continued)
measured at their fair values at that date. Any difference betwaen tha consideration received and the amounts
recognised and derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer.

If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right
to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing
contract, If the fee to be received is not expacted to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a
servicing liability for the servicing cbligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be
more than adequate compensation for the sarvicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an
amount determined on the basis of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity
obtaining a new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the
new financial asset, financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration raceived is recognised in surplus or deficlt,

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its
entirety, the previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the
transfer. For this purpose, a retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The
difference between the camying amount allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration
reccived for the part derecognised is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the transferred asset, the entity continues to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and
recognise a financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any
revenue on the transfemed asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the
associated liability nor the revenue, and the associated expenses are offset.

Financial liability

The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial positicn when it
is extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or walved.

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is
accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised.
Similarly, a substantial madification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as
having extinguished the original financial liability and having recognised a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by
way of a non-exchange transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from
Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).

Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a compenent that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit.

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit,

Distributions to holders of residual interests are recognised by the entity directly in net assets. Transaction costs
incurred on residual interests are accounted for as a deduction from netassefs. Income tax Iwhere applicable]
relating to distributions to holders of residual interests and to transacticn costs incurred/chlfesiglial interests are
accounted for in accordance with the International Accounting Standard on Income Taxes.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amaunt presented in the statement of financial
position when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recogniseijamolints i intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecously.
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In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset the
transferred asset and the associated liability.

1.9 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantiaily all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.
Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is

included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the municipality's incremental
borrowing rate.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance
of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a siraight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.10 Inventeries

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
. distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
+  consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary fo make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Current replacement cost is the cost the municipality incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories
having a similar nature and use to the municipafity.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised-as-an-expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses arerecognised when the goods are distributed] or
related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacerent cost
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the perioghimwhich.thélréversal occurs.
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1.11 Impalrment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial return. Commercial return means that
positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss of the asset's future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount af which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses therson.

A cash-generating unit is the smalflest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax
expense,

Depreciation (Amortisation} is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its usefut life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable service amount is the higher of & non-cash-generating asset's fair value Jess costs to sell and its value in use,

Usefui life is either:
*  the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality: or
. the number of production or similar units expected to be abtained from the asset by the municipality.

Judgements made by management in applying the criteria to designate assets as non-cash-generating assets or cash-
generating assets, are as follows:

This is based on the units ability to generate cashh independently.Currently at the municipality there is no cash generating
units.

Identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired.

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

Irespective of whether there is any indication of impaimment, the entity also tests a non-cash-generating intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset not yet available for use for impairment annually by
comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every
year. If an Intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting peried, that intangible asset was tested for
impairment before the end of the current reporting period.
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1.11 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets {(continued)
Value in use
Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service potential.

The present value of the remalning service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is determined using the following
approach:

Depreciated replacement cost approach

The present value of the remaining service potentiaf of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the depreciated
replacement cost of the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset's gross service potential. This
cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used conditien. An asset may be replaced either through reproduction (replication)
of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated replacement cost is measured as
the current reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the
basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale is thai the
municipality would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be replaced or reproduced is an
overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or services
the asset provides. Overcapacity assets are assets that have a greater capacity than is necessary to mest the demand for
goods or services the asset provides. The determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asset on an
optimised basis thus reflects the service potential required of the asset.

Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to
which it relates, the municipality recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation} charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any),
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss

The municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no onger exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
municipality estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable service amount since the last impaimment loss was recognised. The
carmying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impaiment loss.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surpius or deficit.
Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluationincrease.
After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation {amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset

is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value {if any),
on a systematic basis over its remaining usefut life.
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1.12 Study bursary assets

The municipality awards some bursaries to its staff member to further their education. The conditions of these bursaries are
that the employees must pass their subjects and upon completion of the further qualification they are expected work back the
period spent to complete these studies. These are classified as receivable from non-exchange transaction as the employess
are expected to repay back the bursary if the conditions are not met

Initial recognition and measurement

The study bursary are initially recognised in books of the municipality at the cost paid to the academic institution that the
employes enrolied with as receivable from non-exchange transaction.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition the study bursary related receivables are carried at amortised cost. These study bursaries are a subject
to an impairment review.

DPerecognition

The receivable from non-exchange transaction relating to study bursary is derecognised should an employee meet the
conditions as per the contract that they worked back the period of study and achieved the academic achievement. In this case
therefore this transaction is then expensed in the statement of financial performance.

1.13 Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service renderad by employees.

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party {as defined in the Standard
of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or fund
employee benefits under a defined benefit plan and are not available to the reparting entity's own creditors (gven in liquidation)
and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless either:
. the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee benefit
obligations; or
*  the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:
*  an entity’s decision to terminate an employee's employment before the normal retirement date; or
* anemployee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits) that
are net due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment.

Composite social security programmes are established by legislation and operate as multi-employer plans to provide post-
employment benefits as well as to provide benefits that are not consideration in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice,
published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain
responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other partias that it will discharge
those responsibilities.
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1.13 Employee benefits {(continued)
Shori-term empioyee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

*  wages, salaries and social security contributions;

. short-term compensated absences {such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the
absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;

»  bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service; and

. non-monetary benefits {for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the undiscounted amount
of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

+  as a liability (acerued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense} to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

» as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measures the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no reslistic alternative but to make the payments,
Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits {other than termination benefits} which are payable after the completion of
employment.

Post-employment benefit plans are formal or informal arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment benefits
for one or more employees.
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1.13 Employee beneflts {continued)
Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans
Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments {the effects of differences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. In measuring its defined
benefit liability the entity recognises actuarial gains and losses in surplus or deficit in the reporting period in which they occur.

Assats held by a long-term employee benefit fund are assets {other than non-transferable financial instruments issued by the
reporting entity) that are held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separate from the reporting entity and exists solely to pay or
fund employee benefits and are available to be used only to pay or fund employee benefits, are not available to the reporting
entity's own creditors (even in liquidation), and cannot be returned to the reporting entity, unless either:
* the remaining assets of the fund are sufficient to meet all the related employee benefit obligations of the plan or the
reporting entity; or
*  the assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the
current period.,

Interest cost is the increase during a pericd in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which arises because the
benefits are one period closer to settlement,

Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit cbligation for employee sarvice in prior periods,
resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or changes to, post-employment benefits or other long-term employea
benefits. Past service cost may be either positive {when benefits are introduced or changed so that the present value of the
defined benefit obligation increases) or negative (when existing benefits are changed so that the present value of the defined
benefit obligation decreases). In measuring its defined benefit liability the entity recognises past service cost as an expense in
the reporting period in which the plan is amended.

Plan assets comprise assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund and qualifying insurance policies.

The present value of a defined benefit obligation is the present value, without deducting any plan assets, of expected future
payments required to settle the obligation resulting from employec service in the current and prior periods.

The return on plan assets is interest, dividends or similar distributions and other revenue derived from the plan assets, together
with realised and unrealised gains or lesses on the plan assets, less any costs of administering the plan {other than those
included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the defined benefit obligation) and less any tax payable by the plan
itself.

The entity account not only for its legal obligation under the formal terms of a defined benefit plan, but also for any constructive
obligation that arises fram the entity’s informal practices. Informal practices give rise to a constructive obligation where the
entity has no realistic alternative but to pay employee banefits. An example of a canstructive obligation is where a change in
the entity’s informal practices would cause unacceptable damage to its relationship with employees.

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of the following amounts:
*  the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date;
. minus the fair vaiue at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settied directly;
*  plus any liability that may arise as a result of 2 minimum funding requirement

The amount determined as a defined benefit liability may be negative (an asset). The entity measures the resulting asset at the
iower of;
. the amount determined above; and
*  the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
confributions to the plan. The present value of these economic benefits is determined using a discount rate which
reflects the time value of money.

Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or deficit
The entity determines the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value of any plan assets with sufficient

regularity such that the amounts recognised in the annual financial statements do not differ materially from theramounts that
would be determined at the reporting date,
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1.13 Employee benefits (continued)

The entity recognises the net total of the following amounts in surplus or deficit, except to the extent that another Standard
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:

current service cost;

interest cost;

the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement rights;

actuarial gains and losses;

past service cost;

the effect of any curtailments or settlements; and

the effect of applying the limit on a defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit liability).

The entity uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the
related current service cost and, where applicable, past service cost. The Projected Unit Credit Method (sometimes known as
the accrued benefit method pro-rated on service or as the benefit/vears of service method) sees each period of service as
giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

In determining the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and, where applicable,
past service cost, an entity shall attribute benefit to periods of service under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if an
employee’s service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than in eariier years, an entity shall attribute
benefit on a straight-line basis from: '
o the date when service by the employee first leads to benefits under the plan (whether or not the benefits are
conditional on further service}; until
. the date when further service by the employee will lead to no material amount of further benefits under the plan,
other than from further salary increases.

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan. The results of the
valuation are updated for any material transactions and other material changes in circumstances (including changes in market
prices and interest rates) up to the reporting date.

The entity recognises gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or
settlement occurs. The gain or loss on a curtailment or sefttement comprises:

+  any resulting change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation; and

. any resulting change in the fair value of the plan assets.

Before determining the effect of a curtailment or settlement, the entity re-measure the obligation (and the related plan assets, if
any) using current actuarial assumptions {including current market interest rates and other current market prices).

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other
respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit
plan is presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

The entity offsets an asset relating to one plan against a liability relating to another plan whaen the entity has a legally

enforceable right to use a surplus in one plan to settle obligations under the other plan and intends either to settle the
obligations on a net basis, or to realise the surplus in one plan and settle its obligation under the other plan simultaneously.
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1.13 Employee benefits (continued)
Actuarlal assumptions
Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible.

Financial assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the period over which the obligations are to
be settled.

The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations (both funded and unfunded) reflect the time value of maney.
The currency and term of the financial instrument seiected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Post-employment benefit obligations are measured on a basis that reflects:

. estimated future salary increases;

=  the benefits set out in the terms of the plan (or resulting from any constructive obligation that goes beyond those
terms) at the reporting date; and

+ estimated future changes in the level of any state benefits that affect the benefits payable under a defined benefit
plan, if, and only if, either;

. those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or
past history, or other reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefits will change in some predictable manner,
for example, in line with future changes in general price levels or general salary levels.

Assumptions about medical costs take account of estimated future changes in the cost of medical services, resulting from both
inflation and specific changes in medical costs.

Other post retirement obligations

The municipality provides post-retirement health care benefits, housing subsidies and gratuities upon retirement to some
retirees.

The entilement to post-retirement heaith care benefits is based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and
the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the periad of employment.
Independent qualified actuaries carry out valuations of these obligations. An annual charge to income is made to cover both
these liabilities.

The amount recognised as a liability for other long-term employee benefits is the net total of the following amounts:
=  the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date,;
*  minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settied directly.

The entity shall recognise the net total of the following amounts as expense or revenue, except to the extent that another
Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:
= cumrent service cost;
interest cost;
the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement right recognised as an asset;
actuarial gains and losses, which shall all be recognised immediately,
past service cost, which shall all be recognised immediately; and
the effect of any curtailments or settlements.

- e B o® ®
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1.13 Employee benefits (continued)
Termination benefits

The entity recognises termination benefits as a liability and an expense when the entity is demonstrably committed fo either:
»  terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date; or
. provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.

The entity is demonstrably committed to a termination when the entity has a detailed formal plan for the termination and is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal. The detailed plan includes.

+  the location, function, and approximate number of employees whose services are to be terminated;

s the termination benefits for each job classification or function; and

+ the time at which the plan will be implemented,

Implementation begins as soon as possible and the period of time to complete implementation is such that material changes to
the plan are not likely.

Where termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the reporting date, they are discounted using an appropriate

discount rate. The rate used to discount the benefit reflects the time value of money. The currency and term of the financial
instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency and estimated term of the benefit.
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1.14 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
. the municipality has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
*  itis probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and
+  areliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by ancther party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the municipality
settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does
not exceed the amount of the provision,

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to setile the
obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus {deficit).

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:

. has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concermned,;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being
terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and

. has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:
*  necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
* not associated with the ongoing activities of the municipality

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an cperation until the municipality is committed to the sale
or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement,

After their initiai recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entitv combinations that are recognised separately are
subsequentiy measured at the higher of:

. the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

*  the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 37
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1.15 Commitmenis

ltems are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally resuit in the
outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractus! commitments,

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial
statements, if both the following criteria are met:
. Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or
building maintenance services), and
. Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity — therefore salary
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.16 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal vaiue {primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability seftled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an am's length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Interest

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is

recognised when:
. It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the

municipality, and
»  The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised in surplus or deficit,using the effective interest rate method

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is
performed.

1.17 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenus comptises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by a municipality, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in
the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the municipality can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can
exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value {primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in
exchange,

Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to benefici jes regardless of whether or not they.pay
taxes.

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as determingéd by a-¢ourt or Sther law
enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws or regulations.
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1.17 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. in a non-exchange transaction, a municipality
either receives value from another municipality without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to
another municipality without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used,
but do nct specify that future econemic benefits or service potential is required to be retumed to the transferor if not deployed
as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a
transferred asset by entities external to the reporting municipality.

Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that provide certain taxpayers with concessions that are not available
to others.

The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or cther authority has determinad will be subject to taxation.

Taxes are eccnomic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance with laws and or
regulations, established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines or other penalties imposed for breaches
of the law,

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.
Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is alsc recognised in respect of the same inflow.,

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the Increase in net assets recognised by the
municipality.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municipality recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent
to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a
liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settie
the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a
liability is subsequently reduced, becausa the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the
liability is recognised as revenue.

Receivables that arise from statutory (non-contractual) arrangements ars initially measured in accordance with this accounting
policy, as well as the accounting policy on Statutory Receivables. The entity applies the accounting policy on Statutory
Receivables for the subsequent measurement, derecognition, presentation and disclosure of statutory receivables.

Interest is recognised using the effective interest rate methed far financial instruments, and using the neminal interest rate
method for statutory receivables. Interest levied on transactions arising from exchange or non-exchange transactions is
classified based on the nature of the underlying transaction.

Transfers

Apart from Services in kind, which are not recognised, the municipality recognises an-asset-in-respest-oftransfers when the
transferred resources meet the definifion of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset

The municipality recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the ddfisition of an asset ani
satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset.

Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
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4.17 Revenue from non-exchange transactions {continued)
Services in-kind

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the municipality recognise services in-kind that are significant to its operations and/or
service delivery objectives as assets and recognise the related revenue when it is probable that the future economic benefits or
service potential will flow to the municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured reliably.

Where services in-kind are nct significant to the municipality's operations and/or service delivery objectives and/or do not
satisfy the criteria for recognition, the municipality disclose the nature and type of services in-kind received during the reporting
period.

1.18 Accounting by principals and agents
Identification

An agent is an entity that has been directed by another entity (a principal), through a binding arrangement, to undertake
transactions with third parties on behalf of the principal and for the benefit of the principal.

A principal is an entity that directs another entity (an agent), through a binding arrangement, to undertake fransactions with
third parties on its behalf and for its own benefit.

A principal-agent arrangement results from a binding arrangement in which one entity (an agent), undertakes transactions with
third parties on behalf, and for the benefit of, another entity (the principal).

Identifying whether an entity is a principal or an agent

When the municipality is party to a principal-agent arrangement, it assesses whether it is the principal or the agent in
accounting for revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilities that result from transactions with third parties undertaken in
terms of the arrangement.

The assessment of whether a municipality is a principal or an agent requires the municipality to assess whether the
transactions it undertakes with third parties are for the benefit of ancther entity or for its own benefit.

Binding arrangement

The municipality assesses whether it is an agent or a principal by assessing the rights and obligations of the various parties
established in the binding arrangement.

Where the terms of a binding arrangement are modified, the parties to the arrangement re-assess whether they act as a
principal or an agent.

Assessing which entity benefits from the transactions with third parties

When the municipality in a principal-agent arrangement concludes that it undertakes transactions with third parties for the
benefit of another entity, then it is the agent. If the municipality concludes that it is not the agent, then itis the principal in
the transactions.

The municipality is an agent when, in relation to transactions with third parties, all three of the following criteria are present:
» It does not have the power to determine the significant terms and conditions of the transaction.
« It does not have the ability to use all, or substantially all, of the resources that result from the transaction for its
own benefit.
. It is not exposed to variability in the results of the transaction.

Where the municipality has been granted specific powers in terms of legislation to direct the terms and conditions of
particular transactions, it is not required to consider the criteria of whether it does not have the power to determine the
significant terms and conditions of the transaction, to conclude that is an agent. The municipality applies jidgement in
determining whether such powers exist and whether they are relevant in assessing whether the municipality is an agent.
Recognition

The municipality, as an agent, recognises only that portion of the revenue and expenses it rec&IvVes or incurs in executing
the fransactions on behalf of the principal in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP
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1.18 Accounting by principals and agents (continued)

The municipality recognises assets and liabilities arising from principal-agent arrangements in accordance with the
requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

1.19 Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
1.20 Budget Information

Municipality are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations {or equivalent), which
is given effect through authorising legisiation, appropriation or similar,

General purpose financial reporting by municipality shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a accrual basis and presented by functional classification linked to performance outcome
objectives.

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 2021/07/01 to 2022/06/30.

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted
amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

1.21 Related parties

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence
over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to commen contrel, or joint control.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding arrangement, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the
venturers).

Related party fransaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control over
those policies.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipality, including
those charged with the governance of the municipality in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to
perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that
person in their dealings with the municipality.

The municipality is exempt from disclosure requirements in relation to related party transactions if that transaction occurs within
normal supplier and/or client/recipient relationships on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those which it is
reasonable to expect the municipality to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same circumstances
and terms and conditions are within the normal operating parameters established by that reporting entity's lega! mandate.

Where the municipality is exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above, the municipality discloses narrative
information about the nature of the transactions and the related outstanding balances; toenable-users-of the-entity's financial
statements to understand the effect of related party transactions on its annual financial statements.

1.22 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that cccur between the reporting date and the
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
* those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date);
and
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1.22 Events after reporting date (continued})
»  those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting
date).

The municipality will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date
once the event occurred.

The municipality will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or & statement that such estimate
cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions
of users taken cn the basis of the financial statements.

1.23 Offsetting

Assets, Liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offsetted when offsetting is required or pemitted by a standard of
GRAP.

1.24 Value added tax

The municipality is registerd with the South African Revenue Services as a VAT vendor in accordance with section 15(2) of the
Value Added Tax Act ( Act no 83of 1991)

The Municipality accounts for Value Added Tax on the payment basis as per the Value Added Tax Act.
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2. Cash and cash equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 8,100 8,100
Bank balances 255,942 857 186,816,796
Other cash and cash equivalents - Sclidarity Fund - 5,323

255,950,957 186,830,219

The only additional account that was opened in 2020 was the Sclidarity current account that was mainly utilised for COVID-19
related activities which was closed in November 2021.

The municipality had the following bank accounts

Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash hook balances
30June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2020 30 June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
FNB BANK - Current Account - 8,225 017 10,946,975 9,734,812 255,942,857 186,824,896 154,896,387

626-3838-6334
FNB BANK - Call Account - 626- 247,719,623 175,869,821 145,134,801 - - -

1377-7848

FNB BANK (Solidarity Fund) - - 5,323 235,646 - 5323 235,646
Current Account - 628-5650-

7755

Total 265,944,640 186,822,119 155,105,259 255,942,857 186,830,219 155,132,033

3. Inventories

Inventory stores 1,256,758 1,081,857

Inventory pledged as security

No inventory was pledged as security.

No inventory was written down during the financial period.
Inventory relates to consumables utitise for operational purposes.
4, Prepayments

Debtor - -
SALGA 2,130,182 2,004,439

(2,130,182)  (2,004,439)

A SALGA prepayment - The municipality made use of incentives provided from SALGA for early payments of fees. This
incentives could only be utilised if payment was made before 30 June 2022,

5. Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade debtors 238,325 5,930,397
Deposits 28,200 28,260
Receivables from chief albert luthuli municipality N 200,000 -
Insurance debtor 721,703

‘Receivables from Govan mbeki local municipality 5,824,703
DWS Receivable 6,536,182 8,757,287

14,946,413 [} 15,715,884
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5. Receivables from exchange transactions {continued)

Credit quality of receivables from exchange transactions

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to
historical information about counterparty default rates: Majority of these receivables are off good quality and has subsequently
paid of some of their debts. The Department of Water and Sanitation honour invoices within 30 days after submitting to them.

Trade and other receivables past due but not Impaired

Trade and other receivables which are more than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 30 June 2022,
R577,771 (2021: R595,910) were past due but not impaired.

6. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 871,358 1,168,349
Non-current assets 806,714 1,103,705
Current assets 64,644 64,644

871,358 1,168,349

Non current assets relates to stuby bursaries awarded to employees on condision that the employees render servises to the
employer to offset against the outstanding amount and if the courses are not passed the amount are recouped for the officials.

The amount for current assets relates to overpayments of employees and the legal process to recouped the amount are in
process.

Credit quality of recelvables from non-exchange transactions

The credit quality of other receivables from non-exchange transactions that are neither past not due nor impaired can be
assessed by reference to historical information about counterparty defautt rates: Majority of these receivables are of good

quality.
Study bursaries are managed through contract arrangements
Receivables from non-exchange transactions past due but not impaired

Trade and other receivables which are more than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 30 June 2022,
R871,358 (2021: R1,168,349) were past due but not impaired.

7. VAT receivable

VAT - 7,357,499
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GERT SIBANDE DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2022 2021

9. Intangible asssis {continued)

Pledged as security

There are no intangible assets pledged as security:

Automated road defect detection software

During the 2020/2021 financial year, developments for a Automated Road Defect Detection Software were undertaken whereby
R999 898 was classified as Work-in-Progress. An additional R300 300 was spent during 2021/2022 to complete this software
which was completed and commisioned in the month of December 2021,

Spatial data analysis artificial intelligence solution

A total amount of R1 766 250 was spent on the development of this software during the 2021/2022 financial year. This asset
was only available for use during the last month (June) of the financial year.

intangible assets In the process of belng constructed or developed

Cumulative expenditure recognised in the carrying value of intangible assets
Computer software, other {980,898) 999,898

The R29¢ 898 is in relation to the development of a Automated Road Defect Detection Software which is classisfied as Work-
in-Progress for 2020/2021 financial yeart
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GERT SIBANDE DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2022 2021

10. Investment property (continued)
Details of valuation

The valuations were performed by an independent valuer, Ockert Brits a registered Professional Valuer with registration
number 6876, who is not connected to the municipality

The valuations were based on fair market value using the income, comparable sales and the depreciated replacement cost
meathos

Reconciliation of valuation obtained and the valuation included in the financial statements

Amounts recognised in surplus and deficit for the year.

Maintenance of investment property

No repairs and maintenance was spend on the investment property as it was transferred during the financial pariod.
Amounts recognised in surplus or deficit

No rental income was received during the financial period

41



[A4

985'v26'56Z (905'628'9Z1) LZL'V08'ZLy  LIL'ske'viz  (Svi'eee’e6l) 9sv'ssv'viv iejoL
76.'999'5 {(Loc'ers's) £60'0L9'6L  v.L'BLZ'L {0E£'6B8'TL)  POL'E6LL0Z weldinbe 1|
6e6'PPL'L  (LLF'LOL'ZL)  9SE'OFZ'SE  GGLTE8'YL  (LOL'EOK0Z)  Z98'SEZ'st S9[2IYaA JICJON
czg'sze's  (61¥'295'?)  vPZ'96L'LL  SO9¥B9'T  (888'POW'E)  ESS'6YL'ZL saunixy pue aimung
vzz'oze'zl (L0Z'0P0'0Z) SZb098'ZE  9KO'ZIS'OL  (L08'166'TZ)  LVB'EDI'EE Aleuyoew pue Juejd
S08'¥S. 152 (86L'044°L2L) €00°'LE6'2ZS  Liv'92/'882 (619'08L'vEL) 0BO'/S6°CTLE sfuipjing
Q00'09g - 000°09¢ 000'09¢ - 000'08¢€ pue

jsuueduw juslwredu)

peje|nwnsoe pajenwinosoe

pue pue

uopepaidap uonenjea uoneloaidsp uoneniea,
anpea BuiAuen pajenuNsdy 11800 anjeA BulAes  pajenwnaoy /180D

1202 z20e

wuawdinba puejueld ‘Auadoid ‘LI

puey u seunbi4

sSjuawidle)s [eIduRUI jenuuy 3y} 0} S9JON

ZZOZ SUNP OF PApUS Jeak ay) 10} SJUSLLSIEIS [RIDUBLIY [enuuy

ALITVIDINAN LOIY1SIA IANVEIS 1839



14

LLE'Srs'viT  (ev9'soe'ez) (BOP'9¥0'L)  08L'EZs't $89'v/6'662
¥i2'622't  (obl'egg's)  {eSp'0ls) #81'055'L Z6.2'999'6 uawdinba ||
S52'ze8'vL  (T6L'er9's)  (0Ss'eop) £95'908 B6E6'PL '8l S3[DIYsA J0joy
599°¢89'C (g5¥'968) _ LBT'EGE §28'122'c SaIMXY pue ainjuing
9k0'zTIO'0L  (8TZ'686'T) - 050°'L8L ¥Zz'0z8 'l Alsuiyoew pue Jueld
biv'orl'esz  (Zzy'voo'el) - 180'92 508'vS.'LST sBuip|ing
000'08¢ o - - 000'08¢ pueq
eouejeq
1e1o) uoneisaudag s|esodsi(] suonIppy Buuadp

Z2Z0T - wewdinbe pue Jued ‘Ausdoid Jo uope|ouosey

(penunuoo) juatudinbe pue yued ‘Auadosy 1)

puey u| saunbiy

sjuswoje)g [ejdueul] [enuuy ayj o} saON
Z2Z0Z 2unp OE papus Jeok sy 10} SIUSWLSNEIS |BIBUBUL] [ENUUY

ALITVdIDINNIN LOIM1SIQ 3ANVEIS LY39



144

YIES

LY 18 ploy ele sjesse asal) "esn Ul [|§s Ing patensidep Ajin) aABY Uolym sjesse oue juawdinbg puejue|gd Ajadold Ul papn|au|

pejersasde@A|ng sjossy

890'0EE'2

0ES'LLE'L

wswdinba |
(unowe BuiAues JoN) ases) sdueuly 0} Joslgqns sjossy

Or ejoU of Jafau Jesh

leioueuy ZZoz oy Buunp pessesse aiam Juswdinb3 pue jJueld ‘Auadoid Jo SBSSBID UIEHISO U) S1aSSE JO )} [Njasn pajewunss sy

0€ 3j0u 0} Jojel swdinbg pue Jue|d

‘fuadold o} sajeje! (LZ02/020Z 10) 06€'EFZ 0L Y) Jeak [eoueuy Z0z/LZ0Z 10) LOE'699'6Y O 1800 SOUBUSIUIELL puB siledey

:RAunoas se pabpa|d sjesse ou ale auayl

funaas se pabpald

sgs'pi6'sez  (9Zg'9r) (Lev'ese'ez)  (Ls9'ves) 8£6'9ZL'CL  6Z£°ZBL'90E
26/'099'6 (gzs'or) (sei'sre'e)  (L21'SE) 0r2'629'S 988°240'2 awdinba ||
6E6'VFL'BL - {sve'L09's)  (£vl'682) FO5'9ve 'y cor'L8L' L) $8[01YDA JOJOIN
gz8'1Te'e - (zse's16) {¥EL'pS) 0/5'87S vrZ'er9'c se.nX| pue ainjiung
vez'ozeTl - {s65°'¢50'c)  (60T'96) 606'92G'L £85'LEP'PL Ksuiyoew pue jueld
G08'P5L LS - {zoo‘ces'zl) - 951'eTL'L LGL'9.8°29T sBuipjing
000'09¢ - - - - 000'09¢ pueq
§80] aduejeq
lelol jsuuedw|  uopemaldeq s[esodsi SUOIHPPY Buivado

LZ0Z - Juawdinbe pue jueld ‘Aaedoad jo uopeljioucday

{penujjuo2) juswidinbe pue jued ‘Auedoid "L

puey ul s2.nblq

sjuawale}s jeloueuld jenuuy ayj o} S9jON
ZZ0Z 2uUnr Qg papua Jeak ey Jo} SJUSWRIJE)S [BIoUBUIS [ENnuuy

ALINMVYdIJINNIN LOIY1S1d ANVEIS 1439



GERT SIBANDE DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2022 2021

12. Consumer deposits

Rental of facilities 60,750 52,798

13. Finance lease obligation

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 1,179,887 1,072,625

- in second to fifth year inclusive 726,810 1,806,697
1,906,697 2,979,322

less: future finance charges (160,280) (393,464)

Present value of minimum lease payments 1,746,417 2,585,858

Present value of minimum lease payments due

- within ong year 1,044,381 839,441

- in second to fifth year inclusive 702,025 1,746 417
1,746,416 2,585,858

Non-current liabilities 702,026 1,746,417

Current liabilities 1,044,391 839,442
1,746,417 2,585,859

Gert Sibande District Municipality leases certain computer equipment under finance leases

The average lease term was 2-3 years and the average effective borrowing rate was 10.5% (2021: 10.5%).

Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases escalate at 10% p.a and no arrangements have been entered into for

contingent rent.

The municipality's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets.

No defaults or breaches in 2021/2022 financial year

14. Long service provision

Carrying value

Balance at 1 July 11,515,000 8,652,000

Current service cost 1,566,000 1,360,000

Interest 1,060,000 875,000

Benefits vesting (1,024,026} {1,049,263)

Actuarial loss/{gain) 392,026 677.263
13,499,000 11,515,000

Non-current liabilitles

At amortised cost 11,372,000 10,718,000

Current liabilities

At amortised cost 2,127,000 797,000
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GERT SIBANDE DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

Annual Financia! Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2022 . 2021

14. Long service provision (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value

Fair values of financial liabilities measured or disclosed at fair value

Long service provision

The Municipality offers employees long service awards for every five years of service completed, from 5 years of service to 45
years of service, inclusive. The employee is granted long service award in the month that each completed milestone is reached.

Working days awarded are valued at 1/250th of annual earnings per day.

In estimating the unfunded liability for the long service award of the municipality, a number of actuarial assumptions are
required. In calculating the unfunded liability a number of 306 eligible employees as at 30th June 2022 were used.

The following key financial assumptions are used:

Key financial assumption Value p.a
Discount rate 11.12%
General eamings inflation rate (long-term) 7.30%
Net effective discount rate 3.56%

The liability at the valuation date was recalculated to show the effect of:

i) a one percentage point increase and decrease in the assumed general earnings inflation rate;

il a one percentage point increase and decrease in the discount rate;

iii) & two-year increase and decrease in the assumed average retirement age of eligible employees; and
iv) a two-fold increase and a 50% decrease in the assumed rates of withdrawal from service.

Sensitivity Analysis on the unfunded accrued liability:

Assumptions Charge Liability % Change

Cenfral assumptions 13,489,000

General earnings inflation rate +1% 14,318,000 6%
-1% 12,755,000 -6%

Discount rate +1% 12,730,000 6%
-1% 14,359,000 6%

Average retirement age +2yrs 14,378,000 7%
-2yrs 12,361,000 -8%

Withdrawal rate X2 10,747,000 -20%
X0.5 15,416,000 14%

Sensitivity analysis en current service and interest costs for the year ending 30 June 2022:

Assumptions Change Current Interest Total % Change
service cost costs

Central assumptions 1,556,000 1,060,000 2,616,000

General earnings inflation rate +1% 1,679,000 1,134,000 2,813,000 8%
-1% 1,447,000 994,000 2,441,000 7%

Discount rate +1% 1,457,000 1,086,000 2,553,000 -2%
-1% 1,669,000 1,018,000 2,687,000 3%

Average retirement age +2yrs 1,645,000 1,132,000 2,777,000 6%
-2yrs 1,445,000 966,000 2,411,000 8%

Withdrawal rate X2 1,123,000 816,000 1,939,000 -26%
X0.5 1,878,000 1,232,000 3,110,000 19%
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GERT SIBANDE DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand ' 2022 2021

15. Payablaes from exchange transactions

Payables 32,076,218 29,633,566
Health inspection payments received in advance 72,288 72,287
Retentions 58,958 552 41,703,889
Staff leave payments 24,311,592 25,992 658
Perforrmance bonuses - 708,680
Benefit payable to deceased employee 398,791 -
Enviromental Health Practitioners payments received in advance 62,443 08,424

116,879,884 98,209,514

The performance bonuses for 2021 relates to events after reporting date as it was approved and paid during August 2021
16. Provisions for bonus

Reconciliation of provisions for bonus - 2022

Opening Additions  Utilised during Total
Balance the year
Provision for staff bonus 3,599,823 3,794,727 (3,599,823) 3,794,727
Provision for perfermance bonuses 873,425 603,749 - 1,477,810

4,473,248 4,398,476 {3,599,823) 5,272,537

Reconclliation of provisions for bonus - 2021

Opening Additions  Utilised during  Reversed Total
Balance the year  during the year
Provision for staff bonus 3,389,718 3,500,823 {3,388,719) . 3,599,823
Provision for performance bonuses 708,691 873,425 - (708,650) 873,425

4,098,409 4,473,248 {3,389,719) (708,690) 4,473,248

Performance bonuses are paid out to senior management after performance appraisal has been conducted which is then
subjected to councils approval. There is uncertainty regarding the amount that will be paid out as the exact percentage is
unknown and the payment is also subjected to council's approval,

Provision for staff bonus

Staff bonus to employees is in accordance with the collactive bargaining agreement. Provision is made for the full cost of
accrued bonuses at reporting date. The provision will be realised as employees bonuses are paid out. Additionaf relates to full
financial impact per department for the period under review.

The staff bonuses relates to the annual bonuses due fo the staff, which is payable on their anniversary of their employment
period. However, staff members forfeit this annual bonus should they resign before this date. The amounts included in the
provision for bonuses is based on the estimates based on the months already worked. All these factors contribute to the
uncertainty on the amount of annual bonus that will be paid out,

Provision for performance bonus

Performance bonuses are paid out to senior management after performance appraisal has been conducted which is then
subjected to councils approval. There is uncertainty regarding the amount that will be paid out as the exact percentage is
unknown and the payment is also subjected to council's approval.

17. Payables from non-exchange

Transfers payable 42,603 12,515,577
Solidarity fund - 858

42,8603 12,516,435
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GERT SIBANDE DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the _Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2022 2021

18. Post retirement benefit obligations

Defined benefit plan

Post retirement medical aid plan

The post employment medical aid plan liability is valued on a generally accepted actuarial valuation method. The liability was
caleulated on a member-by-member basis, taking into account matters arising in respect of principal member and their

spouses . Ages were calculated as age as at 30 June 2022.

The Project Unit Credit method was used as prescribed by GRAP 25. The method is based on the approximation that the post-
retirement benefit is narmally built up over the employee's working life.

The actuarial valuation of PRMA liakility involves the following

The projection of future post retirement medical contributions subsidy cashflow, taking into account probabilities of survival
withdrawal, il-health retirment and death in service. The medical contribution subsidies in respect of the audited depedants of
employees, increasing the projected subsidy cashflows in line with expected long term contribution escalation. Discounting
these cashflows in order to express the post employment medical aid plan liability in the current Rand term.

The amount represents the municipalitys liabilty for post-employment medical aid benefit for the two remaining pensioners
under the new defunctional plan. Current employees do not enoy post-retirement medical aid benefits.

Pension

Employees of the municipallity belong to the approved pension funds. These are defined contribution plans. the Municipality
has no legal or contractual obligation to pay further contributions.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in the year in which they become
payable

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Carrying value

Balance at 1 July 879,000 828,000
Contributions paid (99,365} (95,751)
Interest cost 74,000 68,000
Actuarial (gain) / foss 6,365 78,751
869,000 879,000
Non-current liabilities 759,000 783,000
Current liabilities 101,000 96,000
860,000 879,000

For the liability above the municipality do not have seperate reserves to cover them, however there is enough cash to cover this
liability in future
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GERT SIBANDE DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2022 2021

22. Other Income

Agency fees 10,108,637 7,783,908
LG Seta 374,564 207,395
Sundry 131,277 2,444 508
Telephone refunds 20,367 9,594

10,634,845 10,445,405

Agency fees of R10,108,637 for 2022 (R7,783,908 for 2021} were received from DWS, also refer to the note on accounting for
principal and agents note 45

23. Service charges

Sewerage and sanitation charges 87,948 110,081

Audited
By

1 - 30

Auditor General South Afrit_:a
Mpumalanga Business Unit
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GERT SIBANDE DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

2022

2021

18. Post retirement benefit obligations (continued}
Key assumpticns used
Assumptions used at the reporting date:

Assumptions

Persentage %

Persentage %

30 June 2021 30 June 2022
Discount rates used 8.89 % 10.74 %
Health care cost inflation rate 6.21 % 7.82 %
Net of-health-care-cost-infration discount rate 252 % 271 %
Maximum subsidy inflation rate 428 % 5.49 %
Net-of-mazimum-subsidy-inflation discount rate 4.42 % 498 %
The liability at the valuation date was recalculated to show the effect of.
i} acone percentage piont increase and decrease in the assumed rate of health care cost inflation;
ii) a one percentage increase and decrease in the discount rate; and
iiiy & one-year age increase and decrease in the assumed rates of post - employment mortality.
Sensitivity analysis on the accrued liability (R Millions)
Assumptions Change Total % Change
Central assumptions 0.880
Health care inflation rate +1% 0.879 3%
-1% 0.826 -5%
Discount rate +1% 0.803 -7%
-1% 0.925 8%
Post- employment mortality +1yr 0.825 4%
~1yr 0.894 4%
Sensitivity Analysis on interest cost for year ending 30 June 2022:
Assumptions Change Interest % Change
cost
Central assumptions 74,000
Health care inflation rate +1% 76,000 3%
-1% 70,000 5%
Discount rate +1% 76,000 3%
-1% 71,000 -4%
Post- employment mortality -1yr 71,000 -4%
+1yr 77,000 4%
19. Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Road asset management grant {RAMS) - 685
See note 24 for reconciliation of grants.
20. VAT payable
Tax refunds payables 32,375,144
21. Interest received - investments
Interest revenue
Bank 11,910,104 9,117,753
interest charged on trade and other receivables (VAT) - 1,239,378
" ' 11,910,104 10,357,131
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2022 2021

24. Transfers and subslidies received

Operating grants

Equitable share 14,856,000 32,511,411
Revenue replacement grant 294,552 000 270,740,689
Rural road asset managment grant (RRAMS) 2,365,000 2,334,000
Infrastructure skills development grant (ISDG} 13,500,000 9,881,000
Finance management grant (FMG) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Expanded public works programme grant (EPWP) 2,752,000 3,332,000

329,025,000 319,799,000

Equitable Share
In terms of the Canstitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indigent community members.

The amount allocated for Equitable Share in the 2021/2022 financial year as per the Division of Revenue Act (DORA) amount
to R14,856,000.

Revenue replacement grant

The purpose of the Revenue replacement grant is to fund basic infrastructure within the areas and funding business
administration cost.

The amount allocated for Revenue replacement grant in the 2021/2022 financial year as per the Division of Revenue Act
(DORA) amount to R294,552,000.

Infrastructure skills development grant (ISDG)

Current year receipts 13,500,000 9,881,000
Conditions met - transfered to revenue (13,500,000)  (9,881,000)

The purpose of the grant is to strengthen capacity of focal government, to effectively and efficiently deliver quality infrastructure
,by creating the pool of skill available. Therefore this grant can only be utilised towards paying the stipends to students and
any other administration cost relevant to them obtaining the professional qualifications.

Road asset management grant (RAMS)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 685 69,468
Current-year receipts 2,365,000 2,334,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (2,365,685) (2,333,315)
Other - {69,468)

- 685

The purpose o the grant is to assist rural district municipalities to set up rural roads asset management systems. This grant can
be utilised towards gathering the information of the road register in the municipalities within the district.

Flnance management grant (FMG3)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 1,000,000 1,200,000
Conditions met - fransferred o revenue (1,000,000 (1.000.600)

The purpose of the grant is to promote and support reforms in the financial management by building capacity in municipalities
to implement the MFMP. The grant ¢can only be utilised towards capacity building programmas within the finance section of the
municipality.

Expanded public works programme (EPWP)
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Figures in Rand 2022 2021

24, Transfers and subsidies received (continued)

Current-year receipts 2,752,000 3,332,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (2,7562,000) (3,332,000}

The purpose of the grant is to incentives provincial department to expand work creation efforts through the use of labour
intensive delivery methods In the identified focus area. This grant can only be used towards paying the stipend for the EPWP
workers and other programmes aimed at ensuring that there is creation of intensive jobs.

25. Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment 22,941,105 22,795 806
Intangible assets 189,090 22,950
Finance lease 984,538 557,682

24,094,733 23,376,441
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26. Employee related costs
Basic 120,488,597 116,796,394
Bonus 11,157,270 10,506,883
Medical aid - company contributions 7,165,884 6,731,217
UIF 676,574 605,555
Leave pay provision charge 1,087,540 8,026,309
Group insurance 2,187,733 2,088,492
Barganing council 38,203 36,877
Overtime payments 2,827,967 2,939,271
Car allowance 18,709,210 17,752,909
Housing benefits and allowances 1,702,214 1,574,352
Actuarial {gain) / loss 398,31 756,014
Telephone allowance 1,402,054 1,315,158
Pension fund 21,707,986 20,885,078
189,529,623 190,014,509
Remuneration of municipal manager CA Habile
Annual Remuneration 1,251,833 1,134,333
Car Allowance 240,000 240,000
Performance Bonuses 184,656 -
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 166,024 164,466
' 1,842,613 1,538,799
Remuneration of chief finance officer ZR Buthelezi
Annual Remuneration 1,104,109 1,104,108
Car Allowance 120,000 120,000
Performance and annual Bonuses 200,947 50,000
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 2,125 1,785
1,427,181 1,275,894
Remuniration of general manager planning MJ Mkhonza
Annual Remuneration 801,319 796,812
Car Allowance 96,000 96,000
Performance and annual Bonuses 170,828 60,000
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 173,804 173,492
1,241,951 1,126,304
Remuneration of general manager corporate service NC Ndlhovu
Annual Remuneration 314,109 736,327
Car Allowance 90,000 180,000
Performance and annual Bonuses 102,579 50,000
Coentributions te UIF, Medical and Penhsion Funds 80,145 159,948
Leave payment 164,025 -
750,858 1,126,275

To be noted that Me NC Ndhlovu resigned in December 2021 and that Mr. MA Barnabas and Mr. SP Msibijwas acting in the

capacity as General Manager Corporate Services as folows:

Mr. MA Barnabas for Jaunuary 2022 to March 2022 (See below the remuneration paid).
Mr. 8P Msibi for April to May 2022 (See below the remuneration paid),

Me. ME Radebe was appionted as General Manager Corporate Services in June 2022 (See below the remuneration paid).

Remuneration of general manager community and soclal services ME Michele
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26. Employee related costs (continued)
Annual Remuneration 811,636 811,636
Car Allowance 100,000 100,000
Performance and annuzal Bonuses 158,662 70,000
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 144,980 144,639
1,215,278 1,126,275
Remuneration of general manager technical services ME Thabethe
Annual Remuneration 631,586 833,699
Car Allowance 135,000 180,000
Performance Bonuses 114,431 -
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 111,713 148,610
Leave payment 274,634 -
1,267,364 1,162,309
Mr. ME Thabethe's contract ended in March 2022 and was appointed on a contract basis to June 2022
Remuneration of acting general managar corporate services MA Barnabas
Acting allowance 30,099
Mr. MA Barnabas acted as General Manager Corporate Services for January 2022 to March 2022
Rumuneration of acting general manager corporate services SP Msibi
Acting allownace 15,634 -
Mr. SP Msibi acted as General Manager Corporate Services for April 2022 to May 2022
Rumuneration of general manager corporate service ME Radebe
Annual Remuneration 68,197 -
Car Allowance 8,310 -
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 12,183
89,690 -
Me. ME Radebe was appointed as General Manager Corperate Services from June 2022,
27. Finance costs
Long service awards 1,060,000 875,000
Finance leases 233,184 121,258
Post retirement medical benefit 74,000 68,000
1,367,184 1,064,258
28. Impairment of assets
Impairments
Property, plant and equipment 46,528

During the 2021 financial pericd two hailing sound systmes were impaired due to the
public participation vehicle were involved in accidents which resulted in these systems
being completely disfunctional]
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29. Lease

Lease rentals on operating iease - Other
Paid during the year 106,800 217,800

The committed expenditure relates to the rental of offices in Evander from Govan Mbeki LM and will be financed by funds
internally generated. Contract was renewed on the 1st of July 2021

Govan Mbekl LM

Significant leasing arrangements include:

-that there is no contigent rent payment.

-there is no purchase option in the rental contract and there is provision for 7% escalation per year

- there is no restrictions imposed by lease arrangments, such as return of net surplus, return of capital contributions, dividends
or similar distributions, additional debt and further leasing.

Operating lease commitments - as lessee (expenses)

within one year 115,174 -
within two to three years 123,237 -
238,411 -

30. Operating costs

Advertising 568,271 180,987
Auditors remuneration 4,771,666 4,856,383
Bank charges 36,203 36,705
Cleaning 1,451,801 1,248,734
Legai fees 6,972,849 4,618,890
Donations 1,122,486 1,175,882
Entertainment 708,594 446,284
Insurance 2,207 472 1,517,584
IT expenses 9,357,103 6,569,547
Motor vehicle expenses 6,105,303 4,893,264
Postage and courier 273 313
Printing and stationery 818,707 1,977,854
Promotions 1,078,254 1,673,550
Protective clothing 541,458 471,087
Repairs and maintenance 9,669,361 10,243,390
Royalties and license fees 4,458,082 5,851,467
Security 1,873,328 2,059,937
Staff welfare 145,265 162,549
Subscriptions and membership fees 2,115,538 2,072,383
Telephone and fax 3,931,091 4,147,601
Training 3,280,143 3,657,220
Travel 4,717,482 2,390,124
Technical Support 3,021,724 3,224,011
Public participation 921,565 1,096,072
Municipal and other services 4,857,755 3,686,443
Audit Committee 380,277 are 117
Workmens compensation 1,023,840 984,923

76,324,992 69,615,321

Repairs and maintenance cost of R9,669,361 for 2021/2022 financial year (R10,243,390 for 2020/2021).relates to Property,
Plant and Equipment refer to note 11

No repairs and maintenace was required for the heritage assest refer to note 8
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31. Remuneration of councillors

Total remuneration of councillors 13,340,169 13,595,538

In-kind benefits

The Executive Mayor and Speaker and Mayoral Committee Members as well as MPAC chairperson are full-ime. Each is
provided with an office and secretarial support at the cost of the Council.

The Mayor and the Speaker each have the use of separate Council owned vehicles for official duties.

The Executive Mayor and Speaker has full-time bodyguards / drivers.
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31. Remuneration of counclliors (continued)

Additional information

The salaries, allowance and benefits of councillors are within the upper limits of the framework envisaged in section 219 of the

Constitution of South Africa.

Troika and MPAC Chairperson Basic Car Aliowance Cellephone  Pension and Total
Allowance Medical Aid

Executive Mayor (Chirwa MG) (To Nov. 240,072 91,404 14,248 34,141 370,865
2021)
Executie Mayor (Mngomezulu MW) (From 383,798 162,101 26,390 102,506 674,795
Nov. 2021)
Speaker (Sekhonde BG) 511,104 203,856 40,638 101,440 857,038
Chief Whip (Nkosi SGT) 457,962 175,084 37,238 67,202 737,576
MPAC Chairparson (Ngwenya M)(To Nov. 174,773 66,542 14,248 24,855 280,418
2021)
MPAC Chairperson (Nhlapha N}(From Nov. 292 482 119,440 26,391 65,838 504,151
2021)

2,060,191 818,427 159,153 396,072 3,433,843
Mayoral Committee Basic Car Allowance  Cellphone Pensicn and Total

Allowance Medical Aid

Dhiamini ES (To Nov, 2021) 173,870 68,553 14,248 31,780 288,461
Nhlapho NS 170,242 68,553 14,248 35,418 288,461
Mtshali BS (To Nov. 2021) 170,259 68,5563 14,248 35,401 288,461
Mihembu N (To Nov. 2021) 180,064 68,653 14,248 25,606 288,461
Maboe SA (To Nov. 2021) 170,456 68,5653 14,248 35,204 288,461
Buthelezi BM 470,508 188,328 40,638 94,469 793,943
Mabkoa-Boltman 506,992 193,880 40,638 74,646 816,156
Zulu NN (From Nov.) 312,455 119,775 26,380 46,868 505,488
Zunguza JB (From Nov. 2021) 301,420 119,775 286,390 57,903 505,488
Malatsi PV (From Nov, 2021) 312,455 119,775 26,390 46,868 505,488
Mkhwanazi CB (From Nov. 2021) 312,455 119,774 26,390 46,869 505,488
Molle BP {From Nov. 2021) 312,455 119,774 26,390 49,570 508,188

3,393,621 1,323,846 284,466 580,612 5,582,545
Other counclllors (From November 2021) Basicand Car Aliowance Cellephone Pension and Total

Sitting Allowance Medical Aid

Allowance

Kubheka MN (To March 2022) 180,674 69,061 30,438 26,509 306,682
Greyling GS (To Nov. 2021) 15,428 5142 . - 20,570
Sibanyoni SI {To Nov. 2021) 12,693 4231 - - 16,924
Mbhele JS {To Nov. 2021) 15,428 5142 - - 20,570
Mkhwanazi CB (To Nov. 2021 15,428 5142 - - 20,570
Nkesi PK (To Nov. 2021) 75,974 28,926 14,248 10,804 129,952
Jordaan C 14,815 4,231 - . 19,046
Madonsela ME (To Nov. 2021) 15,427 5,143 - 20,570
Zulu TSM (To Nov. 2021) 15,428 5,142 - 20,570
Mazibuko KD (To Nov. 2021} 12,693 4,231 - - 16,924
Khumalo MJ {To Nov. 2021) 15,428 5142 - 20,570
Ngubeni A {To Nov. 2021) 15,428 5,142 - - 20,570
Mathebula SB (To Nov. 2021) 12,693 4,231 = - 16,924
Karim LS 250,002 95,637 40,638 26,809 423,186
Nkosi DP 3,182 - - - 3,182
Da Vries GR 34,906 11,636 - 46,542
Nkosi VL { To Nov. 2021) 15,427 5,143 - - 20,570
Mictshwa TL { To Nov, 2021) 75,974 28,926 14,248 10:804 129,952
Joubert LK {To Nov. 2021) 66,167 28,926 16,352 20,612 132,057
Nkost MS (To Nov, 2021) 97,500 37,122 14,248 13,856 162,726
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31. Remuneration of councillors (continued)
Malatsi PV (To Nov. 2021) 2,122 . . - 2,122
Brussow JLI (To Nov. 2021) 42,250 14,084 - - 56,334
Makhubu ML {To Nov. 2021) 2,122 - - - 2,122
Mkhaliphi BJ (To Nov. 2021) 3,182 - - - 3,182
Sibeko PT (To Nov, 2021) 15,427 5,143 - - 20,570
Nkosi BG (To Nov. 2021) 15,427 5,143 - - 20,570
Sebolela JD {To Nov. 2021) 12,693 4231 - - 16,924
Motloung ME {To Nov. 2021} 12,668 4,231 - - 16,899
Mahlangu BD (To Nov. 2021} 12,693 4,231 - - 16,924
Zuma NG 3,182 - - 3,182
Simelane XA (To Nov. 2021} 15,427 5,143 - . 20,570
Manyathi M (To Nov. 2021) 97,500 37,122 14,247 13,866 162,735
Skosana VM (To Nov. 2021) 15,427 5,143 - : 20,570
Monoto MM (From Sept. to Nov. 2021 40,817 15,449 7,609 5,402 69,277
Mazibuke TE (From Nov. 2021} 22213 7,405 - - 29,618
Seimela T (From Nov.2021) 22,213 7,405 - - 29,618
Khumalo GL {From Nov. 2021) 26,823 8,941 - - 35,764
Nkambule DM (From Nov. 2021) 139,771 53,579 26,390 20,957 240,697
Lukhele ST (From Nov. 2021) 138,771 53,579 26,390 20,957 240,697
Masango SJ (From Nov. 2021) 64,880 22,470 8,581 7.460 103,391
Webber KH (From Nov .2021) 139,771 53,5678 26,391 20,957 240,697
Kgwedi TH (From Nov. 2021) 139,771 53,578 26,381 20,857 240,697
Yende MR {From Nov. 2021) 26,647 8,882 - - 35,529
Breydenbach Z (Nov. 2021 to Feb. 2022) 15,603 5,201 - - 20,804
Silosisni SA 26,998 8,999 - - 35,997
Mbuli TG (From Nov. 2021} 26,998 8,999 - - 35,987
Moeketsi BK (From Nov. 2021) 2,122 - - - 2,122
Diamini M (From Nov. 2021) 138,771 53,579 26,390 20,957 240,697
Ngovene SE {Nov. 2021 to Feb. 2022) 15,603 5,201 . - 20,804
Sikhakhane NB {From Nov. 2021} 26,998 8,999 . 35,097
Thwala TH (From Nov. 2021) 2,122 - - - 2,122
Melaba ML (From Nov. 2021} 26,998 8,899 . - 35,807
Chauke EW (From Nov. 2021) 22,213 7,405 - - 20618
Matshaba KA (From Nov. 2021) 26,998 8,999 - - 35,997
Mncina LM (From Nov. 2021} 26,998 8,999 - - 35,997
Thwala DM {(From Nov. 2021) 26,823 8,941 . - 35,764
Dudley V (From Nov. 2021) 101,392 38,514 17,810 13,505 171,221
Mahlangu SV (From Nov. 2021} 22213 7,405 - - 29,618
Kubheka MA (From Nov. 2021) 22,213 7,405 . - 29618
Hiophe VS (From Nov. 2021) 26,883 8,941 . - 35,824
Gwebu NG (From Nov. 2021) 66,394 21,233 - - 87,627
Ndebele JHC (From Nov. 2021} 26,998 8,999 - - 35,997
Maboea SA {From Nov. 2021) 66,385 22131 - - 88,526
Van Huyssteen NC (From Nov. 2021) 12,874 4,291 . - 17,165
Bekker PD (From Nov. 2021} 21,437 8,218 4,048 2,701 36,404
Traditional Leaders 26,520 - . - 26,520
2,753,056 989,091 314,419 267,213 4,323,779
32. Transfers and subsidies paid
Other subsidies
Grants paid to local municipalities 46,796,512 54,779,971
33. Auditor's fees
Expenses 4,771,666 4 856,393
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34. Financial instruments disclosure
Categories of financial instruments
2022
Financial assets
At amortised Total
cost
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 14,946,112 14,946,112
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 871,358 871,358
Cash and cash equivalents 255,950,957 255,950,957
271,768,427 271,768,427
Financial liabilities
At amortised Total
cost
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 115,092,102 115,092,102
Payables from non-exchange transactions 10,565,614 10,565,614
Consurer deposits 60,750 60,750
Finance lease obligation - current liability 1,044 381 1,044,381
Finance lease obligation - non-current liability 702,026 702,026
127,464,883 127,464,883
2021
Financial assets
At amortised Total
cost
Trade and other receivables from exchange transactions 15,715,885 15,715,885
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 1,168,349 1,168,349
Cash and cash equivalents 186,830,217 186,830,217
203,714,451 203,714,451
Financlal llabillties
At amortised Total
cost
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 97,856,204 87,856,204
Taxes and transfers payable {non-exchange) 27,505,452 27,505,452
Consumer deposits 52,798 52,798
Finance lease obligation - current liability 839,442 839,442
Finance lease obligation - non-current liability 1,746,417 1,748,417
128,000,313 128,000,313
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35. Cash generated from operations
Surplus {deficit} 23,242,568  (11,341,965)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 24,094,733 23,376,441
Gain (loss) on sale of assets and liabilities 319,343 (646,593)
Revenue received in kind (22,300,689} -
Finance costs - Finance leases 233,184 121,258
Impairment deficit - 46,528
Bad debts writien off . 460,870
Movements in long service award 531,977 1,863,000
Movements in retirements benefit obligation (99,365)  (1,648,011)
Movements in provisions 799,289 374,839
Acturial losses and gains 6,365 78,751
Acturial losses/ (gains} 392,026 677,263
Finance costs- Retirement benefit obligation 74,000 68,000
Finance costs - Long service awards 1,060,000 875,000
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (174,801) (391,392)
Receivables from exchange transactions 769,773  (14,409,388)
Other receivable from non-exchange transaction - (1,089)
Receivable from non exhange transaction 287,010 374,000
Pre Payments (125,747} (115,028}
Payables from exchange transactions (12,473,832) 1,321,671
VAT 39,732,643 17,037,864
Payables from exchange transactions 18,670,370 24,767,008
Unspent conditional grants and receipts {685) (68,783}
Consumer deposits 7,852 6,064
75,056,044 42,826,308
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36. Commitments

Capital Commitments

Already contracted for but not provided for

. Projects and operations - Projects funded by Gert Sibande District 199,552 499,852

Authorised operational expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for

*  Projects and operations - Projects funded by Gert Sibande District - 6,223,286

Committements entered into as implementing agent (RBIG projects)

. RBIG projects funded by the Local municipalities 476,821,738 642,221,344

Total operational commitments

Already contracted for but not provided for - 6,223,285

Committements entered into as implementing agent (RBIG projects) 476,921,738 642,221,344
476,921,738 648,444,630

Total commitments

Total commitments

Authorised capital expenditure 189,552 499 852

Authorised operational expenditure 476,921,738 648,444,630
477,121,290 648,944,482

GSDM Commitments:

This committed expenditure relates to property and projects as well as operational commitments and will be financed by

retained surpluses,existing cash resources, funds intemnally generates

RBIG commitments entered into as Implementing agent:

During the 2019/20 financial pericd GSDM,DWS, Chief albert Luthuli, Mkhondo, Dlpaleseng and Msukaligwa local municipality
entered into agreement where it was agreed that GSDM was given authority to enter into agreement with service providers for
the construction of the water and waste water projects This agreement was still relavant in 2021/2022..The funding of these
projects is included in the budget of the local municipalities through RBIG grant allocation as gazzetted by National
Treasury.The above commitment of R477,343,623 for June 2022 (R642,643,228 for 2021) relates those projects already

contracted to by GSDM on behalf of the local municipalities
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37. Contingencies
Contingent liabilities for the period ending 30 June 2022

Hlakoapitsi CC

Hlokoapitsi is seeking damages of R127, 006 (2021: R127,006). Judgement was received on 17 March 2015 in favour of
GSDM. Estimated legal costs amount to R200,000 (2021: R200,000). Plantiff might take GEDM to trial. No progress from
plantiff attorneys have been instructed to apply for dismissal of the matter and security cost.

Tactical Security Services vs GSDM
Plantiff is suing council to the amount of R1,013,990 (2021: R1,013,990). The matter is before the High Court (Gauteng
Division Pretoria). The estimated legal fees is R380,000 (2021: R380,000) to date. Rule 35 notice was filed for discovery.

Methula NF vs GSDM
Plantiff is suing GSDM for R1,100,000 {2021: R+4,100,000) as a result of an accident whereby the plantiff sustained bodily
injuries. Estimated legal fees to date amount to R280,000 (2021: R260,000). Awaiting-trail date.

SAMWU on behalf of Mr M vs GSDM

Application instututed by Mr M for court review and set aside arbitration award. Estimated costs of the financial exposure
{inclusive of costs and disbursements amount to R500,000 (2021: R500,000). Mr M was dismmissed and is in the process of
take the matter for review, Awaiting trial date. Heads of arguments oustanding from respondent,

GSDM vs SAMWU on behalf of Ms M

Application instituted by GSDM for the court to review and set aside arbitration award. Estimated R650,000 (2021: R650,000).
Ms M was dismisssed and received an award for reinstatement and compensation, which GSDM is in the process for review.
Awaiting trial date ’

BDW Eiedomme CC vs GSDM/ VS Nzimande
BDW Eiedomme CC is suing GSDM as a result of a motor vehicle accident. Legal council estimates financial exposure
including cost to amount to R200,000 (2021: R200,000). Awaiting trial date.

Afri-Infra vs GSDM & others

GSDM is being sued for payment for work done at Lekwa Local Municipality. Amount claimed R747,248.68 (2021
R747,248.68) Esitmated legal costs R360,000 (2021: R360,000). The matter set down will sit down on 22 July 2022 for
irregular proceedings application.

Minning & Environmental Justice Network vs GSDM Joint Planning Tribunal
Review and interdict application. Estimated legal costs R799 000 (2021: R798 000). GSDM has filed a request for further
particulars against second respondent.

GSDM vs Mr §
GSDM filed a review application against the ruling of the arbitrator. Estimated legal costs R800,000 (2021:R800 000). Matter
set down on 16th and 17th August 2022.

GSDM vs SAMWU M and M
Dismissal review application was brought against GSDM. Estimated legal costs R800,000. Respondent to file heads of
arguments.

Mr S vs GSDM
Review application against dismissal. Estimated legal costs R800,000 (2021: R700 000). Awaiting for the trial date
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37. Contingencles {continued)

Contingent assets for the period ending 30 June 2022

Inhlakanipho Consultants CC // Gert Sibande Municipality case Number :10184/2011
GSDM was awarded with a court order for the legal costs to be recovered from the plaintiff. Estimated fees for the Expert
witness is R500 000.00. Recovery costs are estimated to be R950 000 after taxation

Rand Water

During the 2013/14 to 2016/17 financial period Gert Sibande District appointed Rand Water to do operation and maintenance
at Msukaligwa Local Municipality. The district has done the reconciliation of what was paid to Rand Water and actual work
performed. Gert Sibande District Municipality estimated that there was overpayment of R1, 7 million therefore should be repaid
back. There Is currently a discussion with Rand Water fo ensure that this matter is resolved and both parties agree with the

actual overpayment

38. Related partles

Relationships

Accounting Officer - CA Habile

Chief Financial Officer - ZR Buthelezi

General Manager; Corporate Service - NC Ndhlovu

General Manager: Community and Social Services - ME Michele
General Manager: Planning and Economic Development - MJ Mkhonza
General Manager: Infrastructure and Technical Services - ME Thabethe
General Manager: Corporate Service - ME Radebe

Acting General Manager: Corporate Service - MA Barnabas

Acting General Manager: Corporate Service - SP Msibi

Management
Management
Management
Management
Management
Management
Management
Management
Management

Refer to the note for Employee Related Costs note 26 for amounts paid to management and time frames

Councillors are deemed to be related parties, refer to the note for Remuneration of Councillors note 31 for amounts paid to

councillors as well as time frames
38. Prior-year adjustments
Statement of financial position

2021

Payables from exhange transaction (Error 1)
Accumulated Surplus (Error 1)

VAT Receivables (Error 1 &5)

Finance leased assets (Error 1)}

Finance lease obligation (Error 2}

Finance Lease Obligation (Error 2)

Receivable from exhange transactions {(Error 3)
Payables from non exhange transaction (Error 386)
IT Equipment (Error 2)

Note As previously Cormection of

15
3

7

11
13
13
5

17
11

reported
99,619,477
91,128,653
22,417,326
2,131,383
824,964
1,496,065
14,215,884
26,005,452
9,524,536

Restated

arror
(1,409,962) 98,209,515
1,350,410 392,479,063
(15,059,827) 7,357,499
204,685 2,336,068
14,477 839,441
250,351 1,746,416
1,500,000 15,715,884
{13,489,017) 12,516,435
142,196 9,666,792

Statement of financial performance
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39. Prior-year adjustments (continued)

2021

Note As previously Correction of Restated

reported error

Other Income (error 4) 22 10,443 876 1,528 10,445,404
Operating Cost (Error 1} 30 69,723,470 (108,150) 69,615,320
Transfers Subsidies (Error 1) 32 54,616,550 163,421 54,779,971
Depreciation (Error 1} IT Equipment 11 23,336,962 39,479 23,376,441
Finance costs (Error 2) 27 1,052,970 11,288 1,064,258
Prior year errors
Error1:

Payables were corrected for prior year invoices which were affecting the balance and were incorrectly raised . The balance of
R1,408 962 which was affecting the Accumulaied surplus with R1,350,410.00, VAT with a balance of R116 893,0Operating cost
with a balance of R108,149.88, Transfers and subsidies with a balance of R143,805 . An additional Transfers and subsidies
paid relating to the prior year of R307 227 was discovered , Affecting trade payables with R353 310 and vat of R46 083.90.

Error 2;

Finance lease was corrrected for an annual escalation of 10% The Non current Finance lease obligation

corrected with R250,351, Finance costs adjustment of R11,288 and Current Portion Finance lease obligation with an
adjustment of R14,477. This also led to adjustment of the assets cost of R253,541,06 , depreciation was corrected by R 48
855.70 in the 2021 financial period

A finding was raised for assets which were authorised for disposal but were not disposed from the Fixed Asset Register which
lead to an increase in disposals by R68 645

Furthermore, depreciation increased by R42,703 as a results of assets of whose disposal date changed.

Error 3:

Receivables from exchange transaction correction is as a result of an invoice issued before 30 June 2021. to Chief albert
Luthuli Local Municipality for co funding of R1 500 000 which was paid to Gert sibande district municipality in the 2021/22
Financiaf year.

Error 4:
Other income was overstated with the amount of R1,528, in the prior year, Corresponding balance of VAT was also corrected
with R 1528.

Error 5:
In addition Vat Receivables correction from Transfers and payables of R 15 058 968.10 relating to prior year was also effected

Error 6:
A classification correction of Vat Output amount relating to Transfers and payables of R 14 988 159 relating to prior year was
effected , resulting to a net effect of R13 489 017

Cash flow statement
2021
Note | As previously /~Correction of Restated
reported arror
Cash flow from operating activities
Interest Income ) 470,545 9886586 10,357,131
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40. Change In estimate

Property, plant and equipment

The estimated useful life of assets in certain classes of Property, Plant and Equipment were assessed during the 2022 financial
year. In that financial year management have extended their ertimated useful lives. The effect of this revision has decreased
the depreciation and amorttisation charges by R364,502 for 2022 (R 441,142 for 2021) and increased for future periods by
R383,884 for 2022 (R441,142 for 2021) and increased for future periods by R364,502 for 2022 (R441,142 for 2022

41. Risk management

Financial risk management

Liguidity risk

The municipality’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments, The municipality manages
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

The table below analyses the municipalily's financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

At 30 June 2022 Less than 1 Between 1 and Between 2 and Over 5 years
year 2 years 5 years
Trade and other payables - Accrual Payables 32,076,218 - . -
Trade and other payables - Retentions 59,958,552 - - -
At 30 June 2021 Lessthan 1 Between 1 and Between 2 and Over 5 years
yearmn 2 years Syears
heading
Trade and other payables - Accrual Payables 29,633,566 - - -
Trade and other payables - Retentions 41,703,889 - - -
Cradit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The
municipality only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument 2022 2021

Trade and other receivables from exchangs transactions (at amortised cost) 238,325 4,430,397
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions - non—current {at amortised cost) 806,714 1,103,724
Other receivales from non-exchange fransactions - current (at amortised cost) 64,644 64,644
Cash and cash equivalents (at fair value) 255,950,957 186,830,219

The municipality is exposed fo a number of guarantees for the overdraft facilities of sconomic entities and for guarantees
issued in favour of the creditors. Refer to note for additional details.

Market risk

65



GERT SIBANDE DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

2022

2021

41, Risk management {continued)

Interest rate risk

As the municipality has no significant interest-bearing assets, the municipality’s income and operating cash flows are

substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
42. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act

Contributions to organised focal government (SALGA)

Opening balance (2,004,439) (1,888,430}

Current year subscription/fee 1,855,635 1,896,635

Amount paid - current year (1,981,378)  (2,011,644)
(2,130,182)  (2,004,439)

Audit fees

Current year fee 4,771,665 4,856,393

Amount paid - current year (4,771,665}  (4,856,393)

PAYE, SDL and UIF

Current year fee 40,725,973 38,342,010

Amount paid - current year {(40,725,973) (38,342,010}

Penslon and Medical Aid Deductions

Current year fee 49,927,643 48,279,545

Amount paid - current year (49,027 643} (48,279,545)

-

43, Budget differences

Differences between budget and actual amounts basis of preparation and presentation
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43. Budget differences (continued)

Note 1: The lab is mainly used for water testing for the local municipalities within the district. The District is not charging the
iocal municipalities for this service. Only private clients are charged for this service. In the current financial period they were
less private client that utilised this service.

Note 2: The district has intensified its inspection such as air quality, environmental health, shops, restaurants etc. These has
led to Increase due to the fact that more penaltias were imposed from these inspections.

Note 3: Lesser revenue received mainly from the agency fees than anticipated. This is based on the monitoring of the RBIG
projects under schedule 6.8

Note 4. Received more interest due to he interest rates increased at the last part of the financial year as well as more cash
available for investments,

Note &: During the year the district has received a donation from Msukaligwa of its Airport for the purpose of developments.
This was not budgeted for by the District hence the differences

Note 6: No increase promuigated for Councillors in 2022.
Note 7: Higher interests rates used with assumptions for 2022 as anticipated.

Note 8:
Gains and iosses is not part of normal operations of the council therefore cannet be budgeted for

Note 9:
This is due to the adherence to Preferential Procurement Regulations, 2017 -Minister of Finance v Afribusiness NPC(2022)
ZACC 4 which introduce more stringent processes for the procurement of good and services above R30,000.

Note 10
This Is due to the adherence to Preferential Procurement Regulations, 2017 -Minister of Finance v Afribusiness NPC(2022)
ZACC 4 which introduce more stringent processes for the procurement of good and services above R30,000.

Note 11
Management decision tq cut savings when the post is vacated, during the year

44. Segment information
General information
Identification of segments

The district municipality is not necessary invelved in delivering core senvice to its citizens. This is compounded by the fact
that some of the functions that are ordinarily performed by the district in terms of municipal structures act they were
delegated to the local municipalities e.g. bulk water, bulk sewer,solid waste sites etc. For management purposes, the
municipality is organised and operates in two key functional segments which are involved in service delivery purposes
therefore has the ability to derive service potential. To this end,management monitors the operating resuits of these
business units for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocations and assessments of performance. Revenues
and expenditures relating to these buisness units are allocated to these business units.

The two key buisness units comprise of:

- Cemmunity and seciz! services which include municipal health services, environmental health and siaster management

amongst it function;-
-Infrastructure and technical services which include amongst others support to local municipalities &mréa-maintenance,
bulk infrstructure projects,water quality testing etc;

The grouping of these segments is consistent with the functional classification of government activities which considers the
nature of the services, the beneficiaries of such services and the fees charged forlthe services rendered {If any)
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44. Segment information {continued)

Aggregated segments

For the purpose of this reporting the other departments such as Office of the Executive Mayor,Office of the Municipal
manager,Finance, Corporate service and Planning and economic development are viewed as support function and therefore
grouped as governance and administration support.

For segment reporting purposes the income and expenditures as well as assets and liabilities will be included in the annual

financial statements. The information regarding cash flow is not readily split into these departments, therefore it has not
been included in the segment reporting.

Types of goods and/or services by segment

These reportable segments as well as the goods and/or services for each segment are set out below:

Infrastructure and technical services supporting local municipalities on bulk infrstructure,
maintenance of road as well as water guality testing

Community and social services Municipal health serviceds, envirenmental health and
disaster management

Governance and administration support Support function {not a major segment}

Segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities
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44. Segment information (continued)

2022
Govenance Community Infrastructure Total
and and Social and technical
administartion Services services
Revenue from non exchange transactions 350,160,481 1,165,208 - 351,325,689
Revenue from exchange transactions 13,595,806 - 10,200,457 23,796,263
Total Revenue 363,756,287 1,165,208 10,200,457 375.121,952
Salaries and wages (140,258,942) (35,609,658) (27,001,291)(202,869,891)
Depreciation and amortisation (19,360,898) (735,334)  (3,998,501) (24,004,733}
Other Expenditure (61,651,461) (2,533,984) (13,613,531) (77,798,976)
Transfer and subsidies (30,786,862} (1,521,283) (14,488,367) (46,796,512)
Loss on deposal of assels (319,343) . - (319,343)
Total surplus / {deficit) 111,378,781  (39,235,051) (48,901,233) 23,242,497
2021
Govenance Community Infrastructure Total
and and Social and technical
administartion Services services

Revenue from non exchange transactions 319,799,000 . = 319,799,000
Revenue from exchange transactions 12,816,589 472,210 7,897,681 21,186,480
Profit on disposal of assets 646,593 - - 646,593
Total Revenue 333,262,182 472,210 7,897,681 341,632,073
Salaries and wages (140,140,703) (38,962,393) (24,506,948)(203,610,044)
Depreciation and amortisation (18,380,969) (781,806) (4,176,187) (23,338,962)

Other Expenditure
Transfers and subsidies paid

(55,731,395)
(37,172,836}

(2,247,949) (13,244,316) (71,223,660)
{1,255,129) (16,351,906) (54,779,871)

Total surplus / {deficit)

81,836,179

{(42,775,067) (50,381,676) {11,320,564)
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45. Acounting by Principle - Agents

Gert Sibande District entered into an agreement to act as agent with Department of Water and Sanitation as well as other local
municipalities. Below is the detail transactions from these transactions.

Detail transactions for receivables are reperted in note 6 and for payables in note 15
Dapartment of Water and Sznitation

The District Municipality act as an agent for the Department of Water and Sanitation during the implementation of the Regional
Bulk Infrastrueture Grant (RBIG).

Reconclliation of agency transactions

Receipts and receivables

Opening balance 9,757,287 -
Total billed to principal 202,142,734 176,417,433
Total received from principal (196,728,747) (166,660,146}
Recievabled 15,170,274 9,757,287

Gert Sibande District Municipality receive agency fees as part of the agreement with Department of Water and Sanitation refer
to note 22 for more detail.

Payments and payables

Opening Balance 9,757,287 -
Total expenditure incurred 202,142,734 176,417,433
Total paid to suppliers {196,729,747) (166,660,146)
Payables 15,170,274 8,757,287

Local Government

The District Municipally act as an agent for implementing of some of the Local Municipalities for Regional Bulk Infrastructure
Grant (RBIG). A fripartite agreement is in place between the Municipalities (Msukaligwa and Chief Albert Lethuli), the District
Municipality and Department of Water and Sanitation

Reconciliation of agency transactions

The district does not charge any fees for these transactions

Receipts and receivables
Total billed to principal 305,270,142 479,220,316

Total received from principal (305,270,142) (479,220,316)
Recievabled - -

Payments and payables

Total expenditure incurred 305,270,142 479,220,316
Total paid to suppliers (305,270,142} (47%,220,316)
Payables ;
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